PRESIDENT CITY OF GARDNER WARD 1 COUNCILLOR

Elizabeth J. Kazinskas David Thibault-Murioz
COUNCILLORS AT LARGE MASSACHUSETTS 01440-2630

Calvin D. Brooks WARD 2 COUNCILLOR
Craig R. Cormier OFFICE OF THE Dana M. Heath

prad E. Eeglin CITY COUNCIL

Elizabeth J. Kazinskas WARD 3 COUNCILLOR
Judy A. Mack Paul G. Tassone

George C. Tyros
WARD 4 COUNCILLOR

Karen G. Hardern

WARD 5 COUNCILLOR
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Esq.

CITY COUNCIL INFORMAL MEETING

Date: Monday, November 18, 2024
Time: 6:00 P.M.
Location: City Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall

ANNOUNCEMENT - Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open ion of a ting, or may tr it the ting through any medium, subject
to reasonable requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any
person intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents referenced or used during the ting must be submitted in duplicate to
the City Clerk, pursuant to the Open Meeting and Public Records Law. All documents shall become part of the official record of the meeting.

11289 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Part 1, thereof entitled
“Administrative Legislation.” (In the City Council Referred to Finance Committee,
5/20/2024, More Time 6/3/2024, 6/17/2024, 7/1/2024, 8/5/2024, 9/4/2024,
9/16/2024, 10/7/2024, 10/21/2024, 11/4/2024) Page 2

11423 — A Proposal Relative to the Rules of the City Council (Submitted by Council
President Kazinskas) (In the City Council and Referred to Committee of the Whole
11/4/2024) Page 240

CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER
Elizabeth J. Kazinskas
ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS
Council President

NOTICE: The listing of Agenda items are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the meeting.
Not all items listed may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent
permitted by law.

Page 1 of 1



11289

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

S

October 8, 2024 K- 7

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President S :
And City Councilors 3
Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 )
95 Pleasant Street (o
Gardner, MA 01440 “

RE: Update to Item #11289: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Part 1,
thereof entitled “Administrative Legislation.”

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

At the October 2, 2024 meeting of the Finance Committee, it was requested that the
Administration submit a red-lined copy of the current Part 1 of the City Code to further illustrate

these proposed amendments.
Attached to this correspondence, please find the following:
- The latest version of the ordinance amendment proposal

A red-lined copy of the current City Code showing the proposed amendments

A clean copy of what Part 1 of the City Code would look like if this amendment proposal
is adopted and passed

- Acopy of Part 1 of the City Code as it currently exists.

Respectfully Submitted,

Tkt fTULL

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



11289

City of Gardner - Executive Department Updated 9/9/2024
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

September 9, 2024

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant Street

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Update regarding Item #11289: An Ordinance To Amend the Code of the City of Gardner,
Part 1, thereof entitled, “Administrative Legislation.”

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

As stated during the Finance Committee Meeting of September 4, 2024, based on feedback
received by the members of various boards and commissions of the City, I hereby submit a third
revision of the ordinance proposal listed as Item#11289.

This revision unifies the timeline for the re-organization of the City’s boards and commissions

and defines the oaths of office for all positions in the City.

Respectfully Submitted,

A2/

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



11289
Updated 8/1/2024

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

August 1, 2024

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant Street

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Update regarding Item #11289: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner,
Part 1, thereof entitled “Administrative Legislation”

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

Based on feedback the Administration has received regarding placement of repetitive language
and consistency of organization, I hereby submit this substitute version of Item 11289 for the
City Council’s consideration.

Respectfully Submitted,

Tt fliLL

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



11289

City of Gardner - Executive Department Original submission 5/7/2024

Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

May 7, 2024

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant Street

Garnder, MA 01440

RE: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Part 1, thereof entitled
“Administrative Legislation.”

Dear Madam President and Councilors,
During my Inaugural Address that I delivered on January 4, 2024, I stated the following:

“To begin this review, earlier this week, I directed our City Department Heads and
the Chairs of all of our Boards and Commissions to review our City Ordinance
Code - both general and zoning - and to submit any changes that could be made to
improve the way we operate in the City. These changes will first be reviewed by my
administration with a final version submitted to the City Council as a
comprehensive package for consideration later this year.”

The attached ordinance proposal is the first of those packages, dealing with Part 1 of the City
Code, known as “Administrative Legislation.”

Respectfully submitted,

2

/ Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



11289

Amendment
Proposal
Administrative
Ordinances

Legislative
Document



11289

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, PART 1,
THEREOF ENTITLED, “ADMINISTRATIVE LEGISLATION”

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: Chapter 13 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Council on Aging” be
deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 2: Chapter 22 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Assessing Department,”
be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 3: Chapter 31 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Building Department,” be
deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 4: Chapter 34 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled "Capital Improvement
Planning Committee,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 5: Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Cemetery Commission,”
be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 6: Chapter 45 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “City Council,” be deleted
in its entirety.

SECTION 7: Chapter 50 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Community Development
and Planning,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 8: Chapter 62 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Disability Commission,”
be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 9: Chapter 75 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Emergency
Management,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 10: Chapter 87 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Fire Department,” be
deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 11: Chapter 92 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Flags,” be deleted in its
entirety.

SECTION 12: Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Historical
Commission,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 13: Chapter 110 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Holidays,” be deleted
in its entirety.

SECTION 14: Chapter 113 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Human Resources
Department,” be deleted in its entirety.




11289

SECTION 15: Chapter 118 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled "Information
Technology Department,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 16: Chapter 140 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled "Law Department,” be
deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 17: Chapter 152 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Municipal Golf Course
Commission,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 18: Chapter 156 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Municipal Grounds
Commission,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 19: Chapter 160 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Officers and
Employees,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 20: Chapter 182 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Planning Board,” be
deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 21: Chapter 193 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled "Police Department,” be
deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 22: Chapter 217 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Department of Public
Works,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 23: Chapter 221 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Purchasing/Civil
Enforcement Department,” be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 24: Chapter 252 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Seal,” be deleted in its
entirety.

SECTION 25: Chapter 264 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Survey Department,”
be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 26: Chapter 275 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Traffic Commission,”
be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 27: Chapter 290 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Youth Commission,”
be deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 28: Chapter 298 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Airport,” be deleted in
its entirety.

SECTION 29: That a new Chapter 2 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner, to be entitled
“Seal and other Emblems of the City,” as follows:



11289

Section 1: City Seal.

A.The Seal of the City of Gardner shall be a circle two inches in diameter having
in the center a representation of Colonel Thomas Gardner with sword in hand;
in the background Crystal Lake and Monadnock Mountain; within the inner
circle, five small circles, the one at the top enclosing a chair, the ones on the
sides each enclosing the letter "W," the one at the bottom at the left enclosing
the letter "A" and the one at the bottom at the right enclosing the letter "T"; and
in the margin the inscription "Gardner, A Town June 27, 1785, A City January
1, 1923," the whole to be arranged according to the impression hereto annexed.

B. Deeds.

a. All deeds given by the City shall be sealed with the City Seal and shall be
signed and acknowledged in behalf of the City by the Mayor.

C. Use of Seal.

a. The City Clerk shall be keeper of the City Seal but shall permit the Mayor or
any other City officer to affix the same to any document to which the Seal is
required to be affixed.

Section 2. Flag of the City of Gardner

A. Description

a. The Flag of the City of Gardner shall consist of a navy-blue rectangular field
bearing on either side a representation of the Seal of the City of Gardner in
white.

Section 3. Elected Official Oath of Office

A. Mayoral Oath of Office

Pursuant to the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General Laws of the
Commonwealth, the following oath shall be used to swear in the Mayor-Elect
of the City:

“I, (insert name), Do Solemnly Swear That I Will Bear True Faith And
Allegiance To The Commonwealth Of Massachusetts And The City Of
Gardner, And Will Support The Constitution And The Charter Thereof, (So
Help Me God.)

I, (insert name), Do Solemnly Swear And Affirm, That I Will Faithfully And
Impartially Discharge And Perform All Of The Duties Incumbent On Me As
Mayor Of The City Of Gardner According To The Best Of My Abilities And



11289

Understanding, Agreeably, To The Rules And Regulations Of The
Constitution And The Laws Of The Commonwealth and the Ordinances and
Charter of the City of Gardner. (So Help Me God.)

I, (insert name), Do Solemnly Swear That I Will Support The Constitution Of
The United States. (So Help Me God.)”

B. City Council Oath of Office; At-Large and Ward

Pursuant to the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General Laws of the
Commonwealth, the following oath shall be used to swear in the City
Councilors-Elect of the City:

I, (insert name), do solemnly swear that I will faithfully and impartially
discharge and perform the duties of City Councilor according to law and the
best of my abilities. (so help me God.)

C. School Committee Qath of Office

Pursuant to the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General Laws of the
Commonwealth, the following oath shall be used to swear in the School
Committee Members- Elect of the City:

I, (insert name), do solemnly swear that I will faithfully and impartially
discharge and perform the duties of School Committee Member according to

law and the best of my abilities. (so help me God.)

Section 4: Colonel Thomas Gardner Day

Whereas history is prologue, and it is important that our children be cognizant
of our past, especially the early sacrifices that established the freedom and
democracy we enjoy today, annually, on or before the 19th of April, the Mayor
shall officially designate Patriots Day as Colonel Thomas Gardner Day in the
City of Gardner and shall cause a proclamation to be issued and read in all the
schools of Gardner, to honor this patriot who died of wounds received during
the Battle of Bunker Hill and for whom our beloved community was named.

Section S: Flags

A. Flag at Half-Mast following death of Veteran

The flag of the United States of America shall be flown at half-mast on all
buildings owned or controlled by the City of Gardner after the death of a
veteran who has served honorably in the Armed Forces of the United States

and shall continue to be flown at half-mast every day until the burial of said
veteran.



11289

B. Authority of the Mayor

i.  The Mayor of the City of Gardner shall have the authority to have the flag
of the United States flown at half-mast by virtue of a state and/or federal
proclamation.

ii.  The Mayor of the City of Gardner shall have the authority to have the flag
of the City of Gardner flown at half-mast by proclamation by the Mayor.

SECTION 30: That a new Chapter 3 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner entitled
“Personnel, Appointments, and Employment,” as follows:

Section 1: Compensation

The salaries and compensation of any City employee who receives compensation
and any other employees of any of the departments, boards, committees, and
commissions shall be established in the ordinances designating salaries and wages
for the City employees.

Section 2: Appointment

Subject to the provisions of the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General
Laws of the Commonwealth, all those appointed to positions in the City shall be
appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by majority vote of the City
Council, for a period of three (3) years, unless otherwise stated.

Section 3: Oath of Office

A. Failure by anyone duly appointed and confirmed by majority vote of the City
Council, Mayor, Joint Convention, Fire Chief, or other appointing authority as
designated by law, to take their respective oath of office within sixty (60) days
of the date on which their appointment was confirmed by majority vote of the
City Council shall be considered forfeiture of the office and shall be deemed a
vacancy in the position.

B. Oath of Office

Pursuant to the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General Laws of the
Commonwealth, the following oath shall be used to swear in all appointed
officials of the City of Gardner, except those appointed to the Gardner Police
Department, whose oath shall be given as prescribed by the General Laws of
the Commonwealth and the Code of the United States.



I, (insert name), do solemnly swear that I will faithfully and impartially
perform the duties of (insert position title) according to law and the best of my
abilities. (so help me God.)

Section 4: Temporary Appointments

In case of a vacancy in any office, appointment to which is made by the Mayor,
which vacancy is caused by the incapacity, death, resignation or expiration of the
term of the incumbent, the filling of which is not provided for by law, the Mayor,
without confirmation by the City Council, shall appoint a temporary officer to
serve until a successor to such incapacitated, deceased or resigned officer, or
officer whose term has expired, is duly appointed and qualified in accordance with
law, but no such temporary officer shall in any event be appointed hereunder to
serve for a period longer than 90 days.

Section 5: Powers and Duties of Temporary Officers

Except as otherwise provided by the General Laws, City Charter or other
ordinance, any temporary officer so appointed shall, during the time he fills the
position to which he is appointed under this article, exercise all the powers and
perform all the duties of the officer in whose place he serves.

Section 6: Job Descriptions

. All positions in the City shall have a job description outlining the duties of the
position on file in the City’s Human Resources Department that has been approved
by both majority vote of the City Council and the Mayor.

. Any changes made to the job description of a position of a Department Head must
first be approved by majority vote of the City Council before becoming effective.

Section 7: Employees

The City may hire employees for any city department, entity, board, commission,
and any subdivision subject to appropriation approved by the City Council, in
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Gardner.

Section 8: Vacancies

Any vacancies that occur in any positions appointed position shall be filled in the
same manner by which the position was appointed. The successor who fills said
vacancy shall serve for the unfinished remainder of the term of office in which the
vacancy occurred before said successor shall be appointed to a full term.

11289

SECTION 30: That a new “PART II” be added, to be entitled “LEGISLATIVE BRANCH” be

added to include Chapter 4 and Chapter 5, with the current, “PART II: GENERAL
LEGISLATION” section be re-numbered accordingly as “PART III”



11289

SECTION 31: That a new Chapter 4 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner to be entitled,

“City Council,” as follows:

Article 1: Meetings:

Section 1: Regular Meetings.

A.

Regular meetings of the City Council of the City of Gardner shall be held as
follows: the first and third Mondays of January, February, March, April,
May, June, September, October, November, and December and on the first
Mondays of July and August. Whenever a meeting falls on a legal holiday,
the meeting shall be held the following night at the same time.

All regular meetings shall be called at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chamber in
the City Hall. In the event a public emergency or other condition renders it
impracticable for the Council to hold a meeting on the day of a scheduled
meeting, or in the City Hall, the Council President, upon consultation with at
least two other Councilors, may direct the meeting be held on another day or
at such other location that encourages maximum public participation.

All matters of every description to be presented at the regular meeting of the
City Council shall be filed with the Clerk of the Council not later than 12:00
noon on Thursday preceding the meeting, and the City Clerk shall prepare a
calendar of matters for consideration, a list of papers laying on the table and
such other matters as they may deem necessary and shall cause the same to
be distributed among the members of the City Council prior to each regular
meeting; the Council may by a vote of at least 2/3 of its members admit any
matter for consideration at any meeting, pursuant to all requirements of the
General Laws of the Commonwealth.

In the event a regular meeting falls on the evening of a state or City primary
or election, the meeting shall be held on the following day at the scheduled
time.

Section 2: Special meetings.

A.

Special meetings of the City Council may be called by the President or shall
be called at any time upon the written request therefor being made to the
City Clerk by at least two members of the Council.

At a special meeting of the Council no business shall be taken up which is
not mentioned in the call of that meeting; provided, however, that any matter
not so mentioned in the call of the meeting may be taken up if at least 2/3 of
all the members of the Council vote affirmatively in favor of admitting the
matter for consideration at that special meeting and that no such matter shall



11289

be finally disposed of at that session except by the affirmative vote of 2/3 of
all the members of the Council and then only as provided by Section 28 of
the City Charter, and the provisions of the General Laws of the
Commonwealth.

Article II: Legal Counsel

Section 3: Legal counsel.

A.

The City Council shall have the authority to retain independent legal counsel
of its own selection from time to time by majority vote, and legal counsel
shall be a member of the Bar of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in
good standing.

Legal counsel shall assist the City Council in the preparation and
formulation of legislation and in the rendering of opinions concerning legal
matters, either of a substantive or procedural nature, the provisions of the
Code of the City of Gardner notwithstanding.

Any invoice or charge for payment from said legal counsel shall be paid
from the City Council budget.

SECTION 32: That a new Chapter 5, be added to the Code of the City of Gardner to be entitled,

“Legislative Departments.”

Section 1: Office of the City Clerk

A. There shall be an Office of the City Clerk established, overseen by the City Clerk,

€.

as defined by the City Charter.

. The City Clerk may appoint up to two (2) Assistant City Clerks for a term of three

(3) years, subject to confirmation by the City Council, who shall be sworn to the
faithful performance of duty and, in the absence of the City Clerk, may perform
those duties and have the powers and be subject to the requirements and penalties
applicable to that office.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent the reappointment of an
Assistant City Clerk upon the expiration of the term of office.

SECTION 33: That a new “PART III” be added, to be entitled “EXECUTIVE BRANCH” to

include Chapter 6 through Chapter 8.

SECTION 34: That a new Chapter 6 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner to be entitled,

“Executive Departments,” as follows:

Section 1. Miscellaneous




11289

Unless appointed by means other than those listed in Section 2 of Chapter 3 of the
Code of the City of Gardner, all Department Heads, Officers, Employees, Boards,
and Commissions shall report to the Mayor and shall appear before the City Council
whenever requested to do so, in writing by majority vote of the City Council.

Section 2: Assessing Department

A. Department Established and Employees

a. An Assessing Department in the City of Gardner is hereby established under
the charge of a board of up to five (5) but no less than three (3) Assessors, one
of which shall serve as the City Assessor.

b. The City Assessor shall serve full time as an Assessor and employee of the

City of Gardner, who shall serve as the Department Head over the City’s
Assessor’s Department.

Section 3: Building Department

A. Department Established and Employees

The position of Building Commissioner is hereby established and shall be a full-
time position. The duties of said Building Commissioner shall be those set forth in
the General Laws of the Commonwealth and the Code of the City of Gardner.

B. Electrical Inspection Division
a. Division Established

i. An Inspection of Wires Division of the Building Department is
hereby established, the affairs of which shall be conducted by an
officer known as the "Electrical Inspector," and such officer is
hereby designated as the officer required by the General Laws of the
Commonwealth and the Code of the City of Gardner.

. Said Inspection of Wires Division and the Electrical Inspector shall
be subject to the authority of the Mayor and the Building
Commissioner, and, for fire alarm superintendent related activities,
the Electrical Inspector shall report to the Building Commissioner
and confer with the Fire Chief.

b. Electrical Inspector



C.

A.

1. The Mayor shall appoint an Electrical Inspector, subject to the
provisions o the Code of the City of Gardner and the Charter of the
City of Gardner. The Electrical Inspector shall be a licensed
electrician in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

ii. They shall keep an accurate record of the transactions of their office
and shall report the same to the Building Commissioner on a
monthly basis, to be reported to the Mayor as part of the Building
Department’s Annual Report.

Plumbing and Gas Inspection Division
a. Division and Position Established

An Inspection of Gas and Plumbing Division of the Building Department is
hereby established, the affairs of which shall be conducted by an officer
known as the "Plumbing and Gas Inspector," and such officer is hereby
designated. The Plumbing and Gas Inspector shall be licensed to performing
plumbing and gas work by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

b. Duties

The Plumbing and Gas Inspector shall perform such duties as may be
required in enforcing the rules and regulations established by authority of the
Massachusetts Code for Installation of Gas Appliances and Gas Piping, the
General Laws of the Commonwealth, and the Code of the City of Gardner
as presently in force, and as may be amended and in force from time to time.

Section 4: Department of Community Development and Planning

. Department Established; Director

There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Community Development and
Planning Department to be administered by a Director.

Section S: Engineering Department

Department established

An Engineering Department is hereby established. It shall be under the charge and
control of a graduate certified civil engineer who shall have the title of "City
Engineer."

Department responsibilities.

The Engineering Department shall be responsible for the following:

11289



11289

A. Whenever any petition for laying out, making public, widening, altering,
relocating, grading or discontinuing any way is presented to the Mayor and
City Council, it shall be the duty of the Engineering Department to prepare
a plan and estimate showing the probable cost of said work apportioned to
the several estates liable for the same, together with the estimated cost of
other assessable improvements, such as sewers and sidewalks, that may
reasonably be necessitated by such proposed alteration, said cost likewise
being apportioned to the respective estates. Said plan and estimate shall be
furnished complete with the names and addresses of the owners of the several
estates and the amounts assessable upon each of them.

B. The Engineering Department shall have charge and custody of all plans of
streets, sidewalks and bridges belonging to the City; it shall enter in a book
to be kept for that purpose the names of all streets that shall be accepted, laid
out and established by the City Council, with the boundaries and
measurements thereof, the names of the owners of the land, if known, over
or through which said streets or ways are located, and the estates bounding
and abutting thereon; and shall keep a record of all sidewalks that are now
or may be hereafter laid out or established by the City Council, the width,
height and grade of the same, stating the boundaries and measurements
thereof, with the date of such laying out.

C. To inspect all streets and ways being constructed under the Subdivision
Control Law to ascertain whether said construction complies with plans filed
pursuant to the Planning Board regulations, City ordinances and state statutes
and to give to the Planning Board a report of its inspection prior to the release
of any bond posted by the developer constructing said street and prior to the
approval of said street by the Planning Board.

D. Planning Board Engineer.

Provide technical assistance to the Planning Board as required, including
attendance at meetings one or two evenings per month. Duties will include:

i. Review of site plans and subdivision plans, with particular emphasis
on drainage and stormwater management. Prepare cost estimates
where the developer must post bond or security in order to insure
completion of infrastructure.

ii. Inspect subdivision infrastructure (drainage, sanitary sewers, water
mains, roads and sidewalks) during construction and submit periodic
reports to the Planning Board.

ii. Develop stormwater management practices and policies for
subdrainage basins within the City.



E. Zoning Board of Appeals/Conservation Commission reviews.

At the request of the Zoning Board of Appeals/Conservation Commission
review applications to the above bodies, with particular attention to potential
effects on public underground utilities or streets and sidewalks. Provide
technical advice and/or guidance when necessary to the public interest.

Infiltration/Inflow Coordinator.

Maintain records of all sanitary sewer and manhole inspections and
repairs/rehabilitation which result in reduction of infiltration and/or inflow
to the City’s sanitary sewer system. Quantify estimates of flow reduction due
to these efforts and prepare and submit semiannual reports to the Department
of Environmental Protection.

Construction administration.

Oversee construction contracts being performed directly for the Department
of Public Works, based on plans and specifications prepared by the
Engineering Department. This task will include construction inspection and
field documentation of as-built quantities and locations. This task will
involve supervision of the City Engineer or other designee.

Section 6: Fire Department

A. Personnel

The Fire Department of the City of Gardner shall consist of a Fire Chief and other
such personnel as the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council, shall from time
to time deem necessary, subject to appropriation.

B. Appointment of Firefighters and Fire Department Personnel

All appointments to the Fire Department shall be made by the Fire Chief and shall
not be subject to confirmation by the City Council.

C. Fire Chief

1. The Fire Chief shall be the Department Head of the Fire Department,

1.

and shall have full and absolute control and command of the
Department, its firefighters and members and other officers when
engaged in the fire service of the City, or when assigned by him to any
special duty.

The Chief of the Fire Department or, during their absence, the officer in
charge of the Department hereby is authorized to go to another city,

11289



11289

town or district for the purpose of aiding fire departments fire apparatus
with personnel, and while in the performance of their duties in extending
such aid, the members of the Department shall have the same
immunities and privileges as if performing the same within the City of
Gardner.

iii. The Chief shall be exempt from the provisions of Chapter 31 of the
General Laws in accordance with Chapter 284 of the Acts of 2012.

Section 7: Human Resources Department

A. Department Established

There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Human Resources Department
to be administered by a Director.

Section 8: Information Technology Department

A. Department Established

There shall be established in the City of Gardner an Information Technology
Department to be administered by a Director.

Section 9: Law Department

A. Department Established

1. There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Law Department to be
administered by the City Solicitor with the assistance of an Assistant City
Solicitor, if one has been appointed.

ii. Said officers shall be members of the Bar of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts in good standing.

ni. The Assistant City Solicitor shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to
confirmation by the City Council, for a term of one (1) year.

iv. The City Solicitor and Assistant City Solicitor may be full time employees of
the City or may be contracted law firms subject to the appropriations
authorized by the City Council in the City’s annual operating budget, with the
same appointment approval methods listed in this section for the City
Solicitor and Assistant City Solicitor.

B. Issuance of Written Legal Opinions



1.

iii.

The Law Department shall furnish written legal opinions when so requested
by the Mayor, City Council by vote of the Council or request of the City
Council President, the chairperson of a City committee upon vote of that
committee, or the head of any City Department with the approval of the
Mayor.

Said written legal opinions shall be issued by the City’s Law Department no
later than thirty (30) days upon receipt of the request.

The Law Department shall provide the Mayor with a copy of all written
legal opinions issued pursuant to this section.

Section 10: Police Department

A. Department Established

i

ii.

The Police Department of the City of Gardner shall consist of a Chief of
Police and any such subordinate officers, patrol officers and other support

personnel as the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council, shall from
time to time deem necessary.

Such Department may be augmented by a reserve police force in accordance
with the provisions of the General Laws of the Commonwealth.

B. Chief of Police; Deputy Chief of Police

i

iil.

iv.

The Chief of Police shall be the head of the Police Department and shall
have immediate control and command of the Department, its officers and
members, and all constables and other officers when engaged in the police
service of the City, or when assigned by him to any special duty.

The Chief shall be exempt from the provisions of MGL c. 31 in accordance
with Chapter 416 of the Acts of 1991.

The Chief of Police shall be the Keeper of the Lockup in compliance with
MGL c. 40, § 35.

The Deputy Chief of Police shall be exempt from the provisions of Chapter
31 of the General Laws in accordance with Chapter 284 of the Acts 0f2012

C. Special Police Officers

i

The City of Gardner may employ a person in police duty only when such
duty is absolutely essential to its regular services as an employee of the

City.

11289



1.

Special Police Officers will be compensated at the current collective

bargaining rate for patrol/superior officers.

D. Traffic Control Unit

1.

The City of Gardner may employ a person in police duty in the traffic
control unit, when such duties are deemed to be needed by the Chief of

Police.

Traffic Control Officer will be compensated at the current collective

bargaining rate for patrol/superior officers.

E. Civilian Public Safety Dispatch Division

i

il.

The Chief of Police shall oversee all dispatch operations for the City.

The Division shall be run by a director who shall be appointed by the Chief

of Police, not subject to confirmation by the City Council.

The Division may employee all full- and part- time dispatchers as deemed

necessary to execute the functions of the division.

F. Emergency Management Division

i

ii.

Article I: Response to Calls for Mutual Aid
Authority of Police Chief
The Chief of the Police Department during their absence, the officer in

charge of the Department and hereby is authorized to go to another city,
town or district for the purpose of aiding its police department with

police vehicles with personnel, and while in the performance of their

duties in extending such aid, the members of each Department shall
have the same immunities and privileges as if performing the same
within the City of Gardner.

Article II: Mutual Aid Agreements
Mutual Aid Programs for Police Purposes

The Mayor is hereby authorized under the authority granted by the
General Laws of the Commonwealth, to enter into agreement between
the City and any other city or town, or combination of other cities and
towns, to provide mutual aid programs for police purposes in order to
increase the capability of the City's Police Department to protect the
lives, safety and property of the citizens of the City of Gardner and those

11289



11289

of said other cities and towns which may be a party to such agreement.
iii.  Contents of Agreements

Such mutual aid agreements as authorized hereunder may provide for the
furnishing of personal services, supplies, materials, contractual services
and equipment when the resources normally available to either the City or
the other municipality which is a party to such agreement are not sufficient
to cope with a situation which requires police action.

Article III: Civil Defense Division
iv.  Division Established

A. There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Civil
Defense Department to be administered by a Director.

B. The Director shall report to the Mayor and Chief of Police

and shall appear before the City Council whenever requested
to do so.

Section 11: Department of Public Works

A. Department established

i. There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Department of Public
Works administered by a Director.

i.  Aside from all duties outlined in the job description of the Director, they
shall also:

a. The Director shall have all the duties and powers vested in the
separate boards and commissions and any amendments thereto and
shall succeed to all rights, privileges, duties and liabilities of said
separate boards and commissions.

b. Meet when requested by the City Council Public Service Committee.

c. The Director shall have the power to make rules and regulations for
the governing of the Department of Public Works and sections
thereof and shall attend to the proper enforcement of the same. The
Director shall have jurisdiction over the sections and over each
member of each section. The Director shall sign all vouchers for the
Department of Public Works.



11289

ii.  In the event that the Director is absent from the City, he shall notify the
City Auditor in writing of the person designated by the Director to assume
his responsibilities during his absence.

Section 12: Purchasing and Civil Enforcement Department

A. Purpose.

There is hereby established in the administrative service of the City of Gardner the
Purchasing/Civil Enforcement Department and, in said Department, the position of
City Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director, hereinafter referred to as
"Director."

B. General authority of Director.

1. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall direct, supervise
and have control of the Purchasing/Civil Enforcement Department.

i.  ThePurchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall have all powers and
duties prescribed by this chapter and the positions job description on file in
the City’s Department of Human Resources and shall serve as the City's
Chief Procurement Officer (CPO) and A ffirmative Marketing Construction
Officer.

i. ThePurchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall be responsible for all
purchases and contractual services and all sales of property.

ii. ThePurchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall be responsible for the
tracking, recordkeeping and collection of parking, animal control and civil
violations and act as the Parking Clerk.

. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall serve as the City's
Municipal Hearing Officer.

C. Purchasing.

Except as herein provided or specifically authorized by the Purchasing Agent/CPO,
it shall be unlawful for any City employee or City official to purchase any supplies
or services other than through the Purchasing Department and in accordance with
this chapter.

D. Sale or disposal of personal or real property.
i.  The head of the department, board or commission in possession of the surplus

supplies shall certify, in writing, the estimated value, determined through a
commercially reasonable process. The Chief Procurement Officer shall decide



1i.

upon the most appropriate method of disposal, including direct sale, quotes, or
donations and the decision should be based upon the best interest of the City of
Gardner. No tangible property shall be sold or otherwise disposed of without
the written approval of the head of the department, board or commission as well
as the City Council committee or School Committee subcommittee having
charge of matters concerning such department, board or otherwise and with the
written approval of the Mayor.

Real property shall be declared surplus by a vote of the City Council, with the
approval of the Mayor, following the determination of value. No real estate,
whether the same is controlled by any department, board or otherwise, shall be
sold or otherwise disposed of except with the approval of the City Council and
Mayor.

E. Award of contract.

1. The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to award contracts within the

purview of this chapter and shall have the authority to determine
responsibility of bidders.

ii. The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to declare vendors as

irresponsible bidders and to disqualify them from receiving any orders or
contract awards from the municipality.

F. Tie bids.

If all bids received are for the same total amount or unit price, quality and service
being equal, the contract shall be awarded to a local bidder, "local bidder" defined
as having its corporate/home office in the City Gardner. If no local bidder exists,

the

Purchasing Agent shall award the contract to one of the tie bidders by drawing

lots in public.

G. Bid protests.

Upon receipt of a written protest of an award made by the Chief Procurement
Officer, the matter shall be reviewed by the Chief Procurement Officer and a
determination made to:

ii.

Reject the bid protest on grounds the protest fails to prove a violation of the
Massachusetts Uniform Procurement Act and continue with the award of a
contract; or

Uphold the bid protest on grounds the protest proves a violation of the
Massachusetts Uniform Procurement Act and conduct a new procurement.

H. Cooperative purchasing.

11289



The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to join other units of government
(federal, state, county, municipal and municipal subdivisions, including such quasi-
municipal agencies as water districts, sewer districts, etc.) in cooperative
purchasing plans when the best interest of the City would be served thereby and
such action is in accordance with and pursuant to prevailing General Laws.

Other duties of Purchasing Agent.

The Purchasing Agent shall perform such other duties related to the functions,
duties and authorities set forth herein as may be prescribed by the Mayor or any
applicable state or local laws and ordinances.

Chief Procurement Officer.

The Chief Procurement Officer shall conduct requests for proposals, including
oversight of the solicitation, opening and evaluation of proposals and award of
contract, in accordance with the authority delegated by MGL c. 30B.

. Affirmative Marketing Construction Officer.

The Affirmative Marketing Construction Officer shall serve as the City's liaison

with the Supplier Diversity Office and be responsible for all reporting in
compliance with MGL c. 93.

Municipal Hearing Officer.

The Municipal Hearing Officer shall conduct local hearings of code violations
pursuant to and in compliance with MGL c. 148A (Code Enforcement Officer). The
Municipal Hearing Officer shall conduct such hearings using formal rules
established under MGL c. 148A and shall render a written decision to the
appropriate parties.

Section 13: Senior Center

. Department Established
i There shall be a Senior Center overseen by the Director of Senior Citizens.

ii. The Senior Citizens' Director shall report directly to the Mayor and shall
have the duty and responsibility of working with the Council on Aging and
various state and federal elder affairs agencies in providing programs and
services for the elderly, shall be responsible for preparing the annual budget
and shall plan all programs and activities for the senior citizens of the City
of Gardner.

11289



11289

SECTION 35: That a new Chapter 7 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner to be entitled,
“Board and Commissions,” as follows:

Section 1: Miscellaneous

A. Board and Commission Membership

All boards and commission made by the City shall have an odd
number of members, unless membership is defined by any other
section of the General Laws of the Commonwealth or the Code of
the City of Gardner.

B. Acceptance of Donations

Any board or commission may, upon receiving prior approval by
majority vote of the City Council may receive gifts of property,
both real and personal, in the name of the City, subject to the rules
and regulations of the General Laws of the Commonwealth, the
Charter of the City of Gardner, and the Code of the City of
Gardner.

C. Organization and Election of Officers

Unless otherwise stated by the General Laws of the
Commonwealth or by the provisions of the City Charter of the City
of Gardner or the Code of the City of Gardner, all boards and
commissions shall annually vote to elect the Chairperson and all
other officers of their respective body.

Section 2: Airport Commission

A. Establishment

There shall be an Airport Commission, consisting of not less than three (3) nor more
than eleven (11) members.

B. Issuance of Fees and Charges
The Airport Commission shall have the authority, with the approval of majority
vote of the City Council and the Mayor, to institute a system of charges and fees

for use of the Gardner Municipal Airport.

Section 3: Bandstand Committee

A. Establishment



There is hereby established under this section the Community Bandstand
Committee, which shall exist and be operated hereunder for the purpose of
implementing seasonal programs to be conducted in the City's parks, including but
not limited to summer musical concerts and other community entertainment events
at the Bandstand located in Monument Park, as well as at the City's other parks, at
the City's other municipal grounds and at other appropriate locations in the City.

B. Membership

The Community Bandstand Committee shall consist of no less than three (3)
members. One (1) of the members appointed to the Community Bandstand
Committee shall be a member of the Municipal Grounds Commission, to carry out
the purposes of this section.

C. Donations to Committee

i. The Community Bandstand Committee may receive donations and
gifts of property, both real and personal, in the name of the City to
further the purposes as set forth in this section. Upon receipt of any
such donation or gift, the Community Bandstand Committee shall
provide each such gift or donation to the Treasurer, who shall deposit
same into an account to be created and named the "Community
Bandstand Committee Program Fund." All funds in such
Community Bandstand Committee Program Fund shall be used for
the purposes set forth in this section.

ii. In accordance with the General Laws of the Commonwealth, the
Community Bandstand Committee shall from time to time submit a
listing of all donations and gifts received by the Committee for
acceptance by majority vote of the City Council.

Section 4: Board Of Assessors

A. Establishment

1. There is hereby a Board of Assessors established, who shall work with
the City Assessing Department in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 6 of the Code of the City of Gardner.

ii. [Each year at its first meeting the Board shall organize and elect a
Chairperson.

C. Duties

The Assessors shall perform, or cause to be performed, all the duties required of
assessors under the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and shall

11289



be subject to said General Laws, as well as to the Charter and ordinances of the City
of Gardner.

D. Employment Status

The City Assessor shall serve full time as an Assessor, while the other members
shall be part-time Assessors.

E. Abatements

The Board shall meet with any person filing an application for abatement or his
attorney upon request for such a meeting.

Section 4: Board Of Health

A. Establishment

i. There shall be a Board of Health consisting of not less than three (3)
members but no more than seven (7) members

ii. At least one (1) member of the Board of Health shall be a physician and at
least one (1) member shall be a registered nurse

iii. No members of the Board of Health shall be members of the City Council.

iv.Each year at its first meeting the Board shall organize and elect a
Chairperson.

Section S: Board Of Registrars Of Voters

A. Establishment

Per the provisions of the General Laws of the Commonwealth, there shall be a

Board of Registrars of Voters consisting of three (3) members and the City Clerk
shall serve as its fourth (4th) voting member.

Section 6: Capital Improvement Planning Committee

A. Establishment

1. There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Capital
Improvement Planning Committee.

ii. Members shall consist of the Council President and/or designee(s),
the City Engineer, the Director of Community Development and
Planning, the City Treasurer, the Director of Public Works, the City

11289



Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director, the City Auditor, and
the School Department Business Manager, all of whom shall serve
as ex officio full voting members.

B. Review of Projects

i. The Committee shall study proposed capital projects and
improvements involving major nonrecurring tangible assets and
projects which:

1. Are purchased or undertaken at intervals of not less than five
years;

2. Have a useful life of at least five years; and
3. Cost over $25,000.

. All department heads, officers, boards and committees shall, by
November 1 of each year, give to the Committee, on forms prepared
by it, information concerning all anticipated projects requiring City
Council action during the ensuing six years. The Committee shall
consider the relative need, impact, timing, and cost of these
expenditures and the effect each will have on the financial position
of the City.

C. Capital Improvement Budget and Program

The Committee shall prepare an annual report recommending a capital
improvement budget for the next fiscal year and a capital improvement program,
including recommended capital improvements for the following five fiscal years.
The report shall be submitted to the Mayor for consideration and approval. The
Mayor shall submit the approved capital plan to the City Council for acceptance.

D. Expenditures

Such capital improvement program, after its acceptance, shall permit the
expenditures on projects included therein of sums from departmental budgets for
surveys, architectural or engineering advice, options or appraisals, but no such
expenditure shall be incurred on projects which have not been so approved by the
City through the appropriation of sums in the current year or in prior years, or for
preliminary planning for projects to be undertaken more than five years in the
future.

E. Publication of Report and Budget

11289



The Committee's report and the Mayor's recommended capital budget shall be
published and made available in a manner consistent with the distribution of the
Mayor's budget recommendations to the City Council.

Section 7: Cemetery Commission

A. Establishment

i There shall be established a Cemetery Commission for the City of

Gardner consisting of no more than five (5) members but not less than
seven (7) members.

B. Meetings, minutes and records.

L. The Commission shall meet annually in March each year to organize
and elect a Chairperson and Secretary. The Commission shall hold
monthly meetings each month during the course of the year.

i. The Secretary shall keep accurate minutes and records of all meetings
of the Commission.

C. Duties; perpetual care funds.

L The Commission shall have sole control over and responsibility for the
management of perpetual care funds pursuant to MGL c. 114, § 19, and
MGL c. 44, § 54.

1. Said Commission shall be charged with keeping full and complete
records concerning such perpetual care funds and render to the Mayor
and the City Council as often as may be required by them a full report

concerning such perpetual care funds under its control during the
period reported on.

iii. Said Commission shall advise the Director of Public Works and the
Municipal Grounds Commission as to the supervision, care and upkeep
of all public cemeteries within the City of Gardner and as to the proper

expenditure of the perpetual care funds under the control of said
Commission.

Section 8: Council On Aging

A. Establishment.

11289



A Council on Aging is hereby established.

B. Membership; terms of office.

The Council on Aging shall consist of at least seven (7) members but not more than
eleven (11) members.

C. Duties.

The Council on Aging shall have the duty and obligation of carrying out programs
designed to meet the problems of the aging in coordination with the programs of
the Massachusetts Council on Aging.

D. Private nature of certain information.

The names, addresses, telephone numbers, or other identifying information about
elderly persons in the possession of the Council shall not be public records, but the
use of these records shall comply with MGL c. 19A, §§ 14 to 24, inclusive, as a
condition of receiving a government contract, program grant or other benefit, or as
otherwise required by law.

Section 9: Disability Commission

A. Establishment

There shall be established, pursuant to MGL c. 40, § 8J, a Disability Commission
for the City of Gardner consisting of not less than seven (7) members and not more
than nine (9) members. The majority of said Commission members shall consist of
disabled persons, and at least one (1) of such members shall be a member of the
immediate family of a disabled person, and one (1) member of said Commission
shall be either an elected or appointed official of the City.

B. Meetings and records.

The Commission shall hold monthly meetings each month of the year. It shall keep
accurate records of its meetings and actions and shall file an annual report.

C. Powers and duties.
The Commission shall have the following powers and duties:

i. Its purpose shall be to develop and carry out programs which may be
designed or established to meet the opportunities, challenges, and problems

11289



of the disabled of the City and in conjunction with any agency of the federal
government.

1. The Commission may appoint such clerks or other employees as it may
from time to time require, subject always to appropriation of funds therefor.

Section 10: Golf Commission

A. Establishment
A Municipal Golf Course Commission is hereby established.
B. Membership; terms of office.

The Municipal Golf Course Commission shall consist of not less than five (5)
members, but not more than seven (7) members, including a Chairperson and

Secretary.

C. Membership in lieu of Compensation

A Golf Commissioner shall receive a free family membership as defined in the
family membership fee schedule of the Golf Course Commission each year while
serving on the Commission. The free membership shall be subject to taxation
pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code.

D. Meetings

The Commission shall hold bimonthly meetings each month during the course of
each year, except that monthly meetings shall be held during the months of July and
August.

E. Duties.

The Commission shall, subject to the regulations and orders of the Department of
Public Works and Board of Health with reference to the management, improvement
and control thereof for the purpose of preserving and protecting the water supply,
have complete charge of the operation, improvement and maintenance of the
Municipal Golf Course and all such other properties and activities as may hereafter
be placed under its jurisdiction and control by the Mayor with the approval of the
City Council. The Golf Course Commissioners shall have the authority to annually
institute a system of charges and fees for use of the Municipal Golf Course. The
charges and fees so to be charged are to be published in manners generally used in
practice by the City upon their being determined, prior to the date the same are to
take effect.

11289



11289

F. Appointees of the Golf Commission.

1. The Commission shall, as soon as practicable after the qualification of its
members, appoint such superintendent, officer or officers, agents and
employees as it may deem necessary and shall have the power to remove
said appointees for cause.

ii.  The appointees shall perform such duties as shall be required of them by
said Commission.

Section 11: Historical Commission

A. Establishment

There is hereby established, under the provisions of the General Laws of the
Commonwealth, a Historical Commission of the City of Gardner for the purposes
and with the rights and duties provided by law, to be composed of not less than

seven (7) members, but not more than eleven (11) members.

Section 12: Municipal Grounds Commission

A. Commission established; membership; terms of office.

i. There shall be established a Municipal Grounds Commission for the City of
Gardner consisting of at least six (6), but not more than eight (8) members

ii. The Director of Public Works, who shall be a of the Commission during his
term of office but may only vote to break a tie in a vote of the other
members.

B. Meetings.

The Commission shall hold meetings no less than quarterly during the course
of the year. The Secretary shall keep accurate minutes and records of all
meetings of the Commission. The Director of Public Works shall not hold
office within the Commission.

C. Duties

The Commission shall be an advisory body and shall advise the Director of
Public Works, Mayor and City Council on matters relating to the Municipal
Grounds Division.



Section 13: Planning Board

A. Establishment

A Planning Board is hereby established, consisting ofno less than five (5) members,
no more than nine (9) members.

B. Powers and duties.

The Planning Board shall have all the powers and duties imposed and conferred by
MGL c. 41, §§ 81A to 81GG, inclusive, and acts in amendment thereof and in
addition thereto.

Section 14: Zoning Board Of Appeals.

A. Establishment and Authority

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall consist of five persons with a sufficient number
of alternate members that the Mayor and City Council shall deem necessary for the
proper function of the Zoning Board of Appeals. The Zoning Board of Appeals
established under Chapter 675, Zoning, of this Code is hereby constituted the
Zoning Board of Appeals as provided in MGL c. 41, § 81Z. The Zoning Board of
Appeals shall have all the powers and duties imposed and conferred by MGLc. 41,
§§ 81Z and 81AA, as well as all other powers and duties imposed and conferred on
the Zoning Board of Appeals by said MGL c. 41, §§ 81A to 81GG.

Section 15: Traffic Commission

A. Establishment
There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Traffic Commission.
B. Membership

Members shall consist of the Chief of Police or his designee, as Chairperson, a
member of the Council's Public Safety Committee as designated by the Chairperson
of that Committee, the City Engineer, the Director of Public Works, the Director of
Community Development and Planning, and the Civil Enforcement Director, all
whom shall serve as ex officio, full voting members.

C. Placement of official traffic signs and signals.
The Director of Public Works, under supervision of the Traffic Commission, is

hereby authorized and it shall be his duty to place and maintain or cause to be placed
and maintained all official traffic signs and signals, markings and safety zones. All

11289



11289

signs, signals, markings and safety zones shall conform to the standards as
prescribed by the Highway Division of the Massachusetts Department of
Transportation.

D. Meetings; duties.

The Traffic Commission shall meet regularly, not less often than quarterly.

E. Among its duties the Traffic Commission shall:

1. Make recommendations to the City Council, supported by engineering
studies and reports when necessary, regarding changes required to the
Code of the City of Gardner
1. Monitor all traffic-related issues, from signs to major project proposals.
iil. Actively pursue state or federal grants for street improvements (including

curbing, pedestrian crossings, and signalization).

iv. Improve traffic on a regional basis, working with and supporting
endeavors of the local Regional Planning Commission.

Section 16: Youth Commission

A. Establishment

There shall be established, pursuant to MGL c. 40, § 8E, a Youth Commission for
the City of Gardner consisting of no less than three (3) members and no more than
seven (7) members, who shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation
by the City Council, except for one (1) member who shall be appointed by the City
Council President not subject to confirmation by the City Council.

B. Meetings, records and annual report.

The Commission shall meet once annually to organize and elect a Chairperson, Vice
Chairperson, Treasurer and Clerk. The Commission shall hold monthly meetings
each month of the year. It shall keep accurate records of its meetings and actions
and shall file an annual report.

C. Powers and duties.

The Commission shall have the following powers and duties:



11289

a. Its purpose shall be to develop and carry out programs which may be
designed or established to meet the opportunities, challenges and problems
of youth of the City and in conjunction with any similar or related programs
of any agency of the commonwealth or any agency of the federal
government.

b. The Commission may appoint such clerks or other employees as it may
from time to time require, subject always to appropriation of funds therefor.

SECTION 37: Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled “Personnel,” be
amended by replacing the title as “Non-Union Employees” and renumbered as Chapter 8.

SECTION 38: Section 2 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled
“Conduct of Examination,” be amended by deleting the phrase, “or the department head” form
the section.

SECTION 39: Section 3 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled,
“Report” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Section 3: The employment candidate cannot commence employment until the
Human Resources Department has received the pre-employment screening report
clearing the candidate for full duty and/or identifying appropriate and applicable
reasonable accommodations.

SECTION 40: Section 6 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled,
“Compensation for Blasting Services” be deled in its entirety.

SECTION 41: Section 8 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled
“Summons to be presented to Department Head,” be amended by adding the following sentence
to the end of the section:

The summons and/or jury duty service confirmation shall be submitted to the
Human Resources Department to be maintained in the employee’s personnel file.

SECTION 42: Section 12 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled
“Compensation,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Section 12: During such time as the employee is out on an authorized civic duty
leave or unable to perform their duties, upon the submission of the proper civic
duty service confirmation document(s) to the Human Resources Department, the
City will pay the employee the difference between the wages earned on such civic
duty leave and the salary or wages to which the employee would have been
entitled to for the regular performance of their duties. In the event the employee
receives no compensation for their civic duty service, the City will pay the
employee their full wages for the time spent serving said civic duty in lieu of
performing their duties for the City.



11289

SECTION 43: Section 13 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled “Effect on
Vacation,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Section 13: Employees are allowed to roll over twice as much as their annual
vacation allotment. An employee who at the end of the year has in excess of
the authorized accrued vacation carry over as a result of being summoned for
jury duty service shall be entitled to carry over the accrued vacation time that
exceeds the authorized roll over benefit. The excess vacation time must be
taken within the year it was allowed to be carried over into.

SECTION 44: Section 14 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Holidays
Designated,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Section 14: Holidays Designated

A.  All full ime and regular part-time City employees, not covered by a
collective bargaining agreement shall be granted holidays with pay at the rate
fixed for such employees respectively on each of the following twelve (12)

legal holidays:
1. New Year’s Day
2. Martin Luther King Day
3. Presidents Day
4, Patriots Day
- Memorial Day
6. Juneteenth
7. Independence Day
8. Labor Day
9 Indigenous Peoples Day/Columbus Day

10.  Veterans Day
11.  Thanksgiving Day
12.  Christmas Day

B.  Sunday holidays shall be celebrated the following Monday. Saturday
Holidays shall be celebrated on the preceding Friday.

C.  Employees who work a schedule other than a Monday through Friday
Schedule and the holiday falls on a non-work day, shall be given a day in lieu
to be taken on a day approved by the employee’s department director.

D. Al full-time and regular part-time City employees, not covered by a
collective bargaining agreement, shall have the Friday after Thanksgiving as
a day off, but not as a designated holiday.



11289

SECTION 45: Section 15 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled
“Compensation for Working on a Holiday” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

Section 15: In the event that a non-exempt employee shall be required to work
on a holiday, their compensation shall be at two (2) times their regular
straight-time pay for all hours worked on such holiday. The employee may
elect to earn compensatory time for the time worked on the holiday (1 hour
worked equivalent to 2 hours of compensatory time) to be reported to the
Human Resources Department for accrued time benefit tracking.

SECTION 46: Section 16 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Grant of
Sick Days” shall be amended by replacing “15” with “twenty (20).”

SECTION 47: Section 17 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Credit
and Use of Sick Days,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Section 17: Sick days shall be credited to employees on January 1% of each
year. Employees may carry an unlimited number of unused sick days at the
end of the year into the next year. Sick time shall not be used in less than one
(1) hour increments.

SECTION 48: Section 18 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Doctor’s
Certification,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Section 18: An employee that has been absent from work due to an illness or
injury and/or the use of non-occupational sick leave for three (3) or more
consecutive days at one time must present a medical note to their department
director. This note shall be attached to the weekly benefit time reports. A
doctor’s note may also be required if a department head and/or the Director
of Human Resources has reasonable cause to believe that the employee may
be abusing their non-occupational sick time.

SECTION 49: Section 21 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled
“Payment for accumulated sick leave upon death of employee” be deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:

Section 21: For employees hired before October 17, 1995, in the event that
the employee shall die prior to retirement, if the employee has accumulated
sick leave, shall be granted pay for such accumulation not to exceed fifty (50)
full days of pay, plus an additional fifty percent (50%) of the daily rate for
accumulated days over and above the first fifty (50) days, not to exceed a total
of one hundred thirty (130) days paid (equivalent to ninety (90) full days of
total pay.- 50 full days and 80 at 50%) Payment shall be paid to the estate of
said deceased employee.



11289

SECTION 50: Section 23 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled
“Sick Leave Incentive Time,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Section 23: Commencing effective January 1, 2024, employees that do not
call in sick and/or use sick leave in a calendar month shall yearn four (4) hours
per month of sick leave incentive time (not defined as vacation or personal
time). The use of sick leave incentive time is subject to the approval of the
department director. Employees may carry over up to twelve (12) hours of
sick leave incentive time between years.

SECTION 51: Section 24 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled

“Annual Report; Notification of Absence Due to Illness,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced by
the following:

Section 24: On or about July 1%t of each year, the Human Resources
Department will provide the Mayor and the City Auditor a fiscal report of all
sick leave accumulated and used by all City employees eligible for this
benefit. Each employee will notify their department director each morning
by 8:30 a.m. when they are going to be absent from work due to illness or
injury.

SECTION 52: Section 25 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled
“Grant of Leave,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Section 25: Grant of Leave

A. Afull-time and regularly part-time employees, not covered by a collective bargaining
agreement, shall be granted bereavement leave without loss of regular straight-time
pay for normally scheduled working hours as follows:

1) Five (5) consecutive days for the death of an immediate family member of the
employee, which shall include a spouse, parent, step-parent, sibling, step sibling,
children, step-children, or a person living in the immediate household of the
employee.

2) Three (3) consecutive days for the death of family members of the employee,
which shall include parent of spouse or grandparent.

3) Two (2) consecutive days for an employee’s niece, nephew, sibling in-law, child
in-law, aunt, or uncle.

B. If there is a delay in scheduling services, the employee may request a delay in their
use of this benefit until that time. This request should be directed to the employee’s
department director.





























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































11289



10/2/24, 11:09 AM City of Gardner, MA Part I: Administrative Legislation

(10) Have all the duties and powers vested in the separate boards and commissions of t?uézlggk
Recreation, Cemetery and Recreation Commission, except that the Cemetery Commission shall
have sole control and responsibility for the management of perpetual care funds pursuant to MGL
c. 114, § 19, and MGL c. 44, § 54. Except as already provided for herein, the Director shalll
succeed to all the rights, privileges, duties and liabilities of the above-mentioned boards and
commissions.

[Added 8-6-2012 by Ord. No. 1549]

C. Each petition submitted to the City Council and referred to the Director shall be returned to the City
Council with the recommendation of the Director or the reason for the absence of such
recommendation within 13 days of the submission of each petition to the Director.

D. The duties, powers and responsibilities of said Director may be broadened or diminished at any time
by ordinance by a two-thirds vote of the City Council consistent with prevailing General Laws or
ordinances.

§ 217-2. Appointment of Director of Public Works.

A. The Mayor shall appoint, subject to the confirmation of the City Council, a Director of Public Works for
a term of three years. The Director of Public Works shall be especially fitted by training and
experience to perform the duties of said office. Said Director shall hold office until his successor is
appointed.

[Amended 12-2-1974 by Ord. No. 576; 8-6-2012 by Ord. No. 1549; 11-18-2013 by Ord. No. 1563]

B. Said Director may be removed from office in the same manner as department heads as provided by

Section 8 of the City Charter.[}
[1 Editor's Note: Original Sec. 3 of Ord. No. 501, which immediately followed this section and was
amended 12-2-1974 by Ord. No. 576, was repealed 5-17-1976 by Ord. No. 676.

§ 217-3. Compensation.

[Added 11-18-2013 by Ord. No. 1563]
The salary of the Director and other employees of the Department of Public Works shall be established in

the ordinances designating salaries and wages for the City employees. !
[1] Editor's Note: See Ch. 171, Personnel, Arts. XV and XVI.

§ 217-4. Transfer of personnel.

[Amended 9-20-1976 by Ord. No. 620; 8-6-2012 by Ord. No. 1549]

All persons employed by and under the supervision of the named divisions, boards and commissions shall,
upon the effective date of this chapter, be transferred to the Department of Public Works. All such transfers
of personnel shall be made without loss of pay and without change of rating, seniority, retirement or
pension rights, or any other privileges under any provisions of this chapter. The incumbent working
foremen of the aforementioned divisions and offices affected by this chapter, when transferred to the
Department of Public Works as hereinbefore provided, shall become working foremen of the corresponding
divisions of said Department of Public Works.

Chapter 221. Purchasing/Civil Enforcement Department

[HISTORY: Adopted by the City Council of the City of Gardner 9-6-2011 by Ord. No. 1530. Amendments
noted where applicable.]

§ 221-1. Purpose.

https:/fecode360.com/print/ GA30207guid=27931949

52/60



10/2/24, 11:09 AM City of Gardner, MA Part I: Administrative Legislation

There is hereby established in the administrative service of the City of Gardner the Purcha1s;]r12g;§8ivi|
Enforcement Department and, in said Department, the office of City Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement
Director, hereinafter referred to as "Director.”

§ 221-2. General authority of Director.

The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall direct, supervise and have control of the
Purchasing/Civil Enforcement Department. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall have all
powers and duties prescribed by this chapter and shall serve as the City's Chief Procurement Officer
(CPO) and Affirmative Marketing Construction Officer. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director
shall be responsible for all purchases and contractual services and all sales of property. The Purchasing
Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall be responsible for the tracking, recordkeeping and collection of
parking, animal control and civil violations and act as the Parking Clerk. The Purchasing Agent/Civil
Enforcement Director shall serve as the City's Municipal Hearing Officer.

§ 221-3. Appointment and compensation of Director; employees.

A. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall be appointed by the Mayor for a term of three
years, subject to confirmation by the City Council.

B. The salary of the Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall be included in the salary and
wage ordinance of the City.l"]
[1] Editor's Note: See Ch. 171, Personnel, Arts. XV and XVI.

C. Persons employed in the Purchasing/Civil Enforcement Department shall be under the direct
supervision of the Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director.

§ 221-4. Powers and duties of Director.

A. The Purchasing Agent shall:

(1) Apply the provisions of Massachusetts Uniform Public Procurement Laws to all purchases, orders
and contracts for the City of Gardner, utilizing rules of procedure established by the Purchasing
Agent as necessary to conform to all aspects of state and federal procurement laws and
regulations. Such purchases, orders and contracts shall include procurement of supplies,
services, construction and repairs to public buildings, public works projects, design and
engineering services, and the acquisition and disposition of real property and personal property.

(2) Ensure that all specifications be definite and certain and shall permit open and fair competition;
provided, however, that the provisions of this subsection shall not apply to noncompetitive
purchases or contracts.

(3) Act to procure for the City the highest quality supplies and contractual services, incurring the least
expense to the City.

(4) Endeavor to obtain as full and open competition as possible on all purchases and sales.

(5) Serve as the City's Affirmative Marketing Construction Officer in cooperation with the
Massachusetts Supplier Diversity Office.
[Amended 11-18-2013 by Ord. No. 1563]

B. The Purchasing Agent is authorized to promulgate regulations, policies and procedures consistent
with the intent of this chapter, subject to prevailing general laws.

C. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall

https:/fecode360.com/print/ GA3020?guid=27931949 53/60



10/2/24, 11:08 AM City of Gardner, MA Part |: Administrative Legislation

(1) Serve as the Parking Clerk in accordance with MGL c. 90, §§ 20A 1/2 to 20E. The Parl&r?gz é%rk
shall be responsible for the supervision and processing of parking violations, conducting informal
hearings for violation appeals, and reporting overdue violations to the Registry of Motor Vehicles.
The Parking Clerk shall be responsible for contracting with a state-approved vendor for
coordination with the Registry of Motor Vehicles.

(2) Oversee the input, computerized tracking, management and reporting of all noncriminal fines and
penalties from initial imposition through collection.

(3) Serve as the City's Municipal Hearing Officer in accordance with MGL c¢. 148A, Code
Enforcement Officer. The Municipal Hearing Officer shall conduct requested hearings of code
violations pursuant to this chapter and shall be compensated as provided under MGL c. 148A,

§5.
[Amended 11-18-2013 by Ord. No. 1563]

§ 221-5. Purchasing.

Except as herein provided or specifically authorized by the Purchasing Agent/CPQ, it shall be unlawful for
any City employee or City official to purchase any supplies or services other than through the Purchasing
Department and in accordance with this chapter.

§ 221-6. Sale, alienation or disposal of personal or real property.

A. Personal property shall be declared scrap or surplus by the functional department head. No tangible
personal property, whether the same is controlled by any department, board or otherwise, shall be
sold, alienated or otherwise disposed of except upon the written approval of the City Council
committee having charge of matters concerning such department, board or otherwise and with the
written approval of the Mayor.

B. Real property shall be declared surplus by a vote of the City Council with the approval of the Mayor.
No real estate, whether the same is controlled by any department, board or otherwise, shall be sold,
alienated or otherwise disposed of except with the approval of the City Council and Mayor.

§ 221-7. Award of contract.

A. The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to award contracts within the purview of this chapter
and shall have the authority to determine responsibility of bidders.

B. The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to declare vendors as irresponsible bidders and to
disqualify them from receiving any orders or contract awards from the municipality.

§ 221-8. Tie bids.

If all bids received are for the same total amount or unit price, quality and service being equal, the contract
shall be awarded to a local bidder, "local bidder" defined as having its corporate/home office in the City
Gardner. If no local bidder exists, the Purchasing Agent shall award the contract to one of the tie bidders
by drawing lots in public.

§ 221-9. Bid protests.

Upon receipt of a written protest of an award made by the Chief Procurement Officer, the matter shall be
reviewed by the Chief Procurement Officer and a determination made to:

https://ecode360.com/print/ GA30207guid=27931949 54/60



10/2/24, 11:09 AM City of Gardner, MA Part I: Administrative Legislation

A. Reject the bid protest on grounds the protest fails to prove a violation of the Massachusett;I 1L?n|8fg)rm
Procurement Act and continue with the award of a contract; or

B. Uphold the bid protest on grounds the protest proves a violation of the Massachusetts Uniform
Procurement Act and conduct a new procurement.

§ 221-10. Cooperative purchasing.

The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to join other units of government (federal, state, county,
municipal and municipal subdivisions, including such quasi-municipal agencies as water districts, sewer
districts, etc.) in cooperative purchasing plans when the best interest of the City would be served thereby
and such action is in accordance with and pursuant to prevailing General Laws.

§ 221-11. Other duties of Purchasing Agent.

The Purchasing Agent shall perform such other duties related to the functions, duties and authorities set
forth herein as may be prescribed by the Mayor or any applicable state or local laws and ordinances.

§ 221-12. Chief Procurement Officer.

The Chief Procurement Officer shall conduct requests for proposals, including oversight of the solicitation,
opening and evaluation of proposals and award of contract, in accordance with the authority delegated by
MGL c. 30B.

§ 221-13. Affirmative Marketing Construction Officer.

[Amended 11-18-2013 by Ord. No. 1563]
The Affirmative Marketing Construction Officer shall serve as the City's liaison with the Supplier Diversity
Office and be responsible for all reporting in compliance with MGL c. 93.

§ 221-14. Municipal Hearing Officer.

[Amended 11-18-2013 by Ord. No. 1563]

The Municipal Hearing Officer shall conduct local hearings of code violations pursuant to and in
compliance with MGL c. 148A (Code Enforcement Officer). The Municipal Hearing Officer shall conduct
such hearings using formal rules established under MGL c. 148A and shall render a written decision to the
appropriate parties.

Chapter 252. Seal

[HISTORY: Adopted by the City Council of the City of Gardner 4-2-1923 by Ord. No. 12. Amendments
noted where applicable.]

§ 252-1. Description.

The Seal of the City of Gardner shall be a circle two inches in diameter having in the center a
representation of Colonel Thomas Gardner with sword in hand; in the background Crystal Lake and
Monadnock Mountain; within the inner circle, five small circles, the one at the top enclosing a chair, the
ones on the sides each enclosing the letter "W," the one at the bottom at the left enclosing the letter "A"
and the one at the bottom at the right enclosing the letter "T"; and in the margin the inscription "Gardner, A

hitps://ecode360.com/print/ GA30207guid=27931949 55/60






























11423

Rule 16

Whenever an ordinance, resolution or vote is required by law to be presented to the Mayor, the City
Clerk shall present the same without delay and shall enter upon the records of the City Council the date
upon which it is presented and approved.

Rule 17

All officers not appointed shall be elected by a voice vote, each member who is present answering to
their name when it is called by the Clerk or other proper officer, and stating the name of the person for
whom they voted, or declining to vote, as the case may be; and the Clerk or other proper officer shall
record every such vote.

Rule 18

In case of a vacancy which occurs for the position of City Clerk, City Treasurer, City Auditor and
Collector of Taxes, which appointments are made by the City Council as provided by Section 9 of the
City Charter; therefore, any qualified person who files an application for any one of the above
mentioned positions shall be accorded the privilege of not having their application disclosed until the
day of appointment.

Rule 19
These rules shall be the rules for all standing and special committees of the Council unless otherwise
determined by the standing or special committee.

Rule 20

A rule may be suspended for a defined portion or entirety of a single meeting by majority vote of the
Council on the motion of a Councillor. Motions to suspend a rule shall be prevailing, do not need a
second, shall go into effect be there no objection, and in the event of an objection shall immediately be
subject to a vote without discussion.

These rules shall be in force for the duration of the session unless suspended. A rule may be amended by
a two-thirds vote of the Council after the proposed amendment has appeared on the Council agenda for
two consecutive regular meetings. Any accepted amendment shall go into force at the next regular
meeting following an affirmative vote unless otherwise determined by unanimous vote of the Council.

Rule 21

Robert’s Rules of Order shall be the authority governing the conduct of business at all Council meetings,
except as otherwise indicated in these rules.

City Council Rules Proposed Changes





